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Interim/
Monthly
Interim

Bates Nos.

No. of
Pages
Processed

Blank,
Duplicate,
Non-
responsive
Pages

Produced to
Sus=S
Consult=C
Referral=R

Withheld in
Full=WIF

No. of
Pages
Produced

Pages
Produced
and
Processed

FEB 2023

1-66

66

62

S=4

66

66

MAR 2023

67-283

217

S=1
R=137 (EOUSA)
R=73(FBI)
WIF=6

217

217

3" Interim

(Jan 29,
2024)

284-491

614

406

C=1 (EOUSA,
CRM, FBI)
R=182 (EOUSA)
R=11 (CRM)
R=14 (FBI)

208

614

4" Interim

(Sept. 23,
2024)

492-626

561

426

S=84
C=15 (CRM)
c=17
(CRM,PRAO)
WIF=19

135

561

5" Interim

627-788

168

S=11
C=11 (EOUSA)
C=2 (CRM)
R=111 (EOUSA)
W=27

162

168

Total Produced

788

Total Produced and Processed

1,626

¥ For the February 2023 interim response, 62 of the 66 pages produced were discovered to be nonresponsive
post-production, but are counted here as part of the total number of pages actually produced (and processed).
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From: Hardy, Lyn (OPR)

To: Boykin, Evonne (OPR)
Subject: FW: Judicial conduct complaint
Date: Wednesday, January 30, 2019 11:20:15 AM

Attachments: rnain(b) (
(b) (6), (b) (7XC,

andam titi 19.p

C
otion for Recusal 2.2 Jan 19.pdf

Evonne, can you open please. No letter. Thanks. Lyn.

P (b) (6). (b) (7)(C)JENES)(b) (6), (b) (7)(C)
Sent: Tuesday, January 29, 2019 4:07 PM
To: Hardy, Lyn (OPR)[(XE)

Cc: Patrick, Ryan (USATXS) [DIGOROIWIO) OS] (b) (6), (b) (7)(C)

Subject: Judicial conduct complaint

Hi, Lyn: Thank you again for speaking with me today. As we discussed, here are the facts surrounding our request for
assistance in filing a complaint with the Fifth Circuit Judicial Conduct Commission against US District Judge Lynn
Hughes.

Background: In[{sJX(5) , AUSA[{9)X(S)I mistakenly failed to turn over all discovery to the defense.
US District Judge Lynn Hughes excoriated AUSA[{S)X(&)|for her mistake, and dismissed the indictment with prejudice. In

doing so, he made a number of offensive and misogynistic comments. Among other comments, Judge Hughes stated:
(b) (6)
WXE) The Government appealed, and the Fifth Circuit reversed Judge Hughes’ dismissal of the indictment in a July

2018 published opinion. The appellate court also directed that the case be reassigned to a different district judge, and

scolded Judge Hughes for his comments, stating that his comments were[{sJXG)]
(b) (6) OPR conducted a preliminary inquiry into AUSA[{s)R{8)]conduct in the {{sJN() M case, and

closed that inquiry upon concluding that AUSA[{sJ](§}] discovery violation resulted from a mistake.

The[{)X() M case: AUSA[(YX(D] next appearance before Judge Hughes occurred on[(JXE) , ata pretrial
conference in[{9)X(S))] , a health care fraud case. At the outset of that hearing, Judge Hughes took the
bench and immediately “excused” AUSA[BXD from the courtroom. AUSA[DNE left the courtroom without
comment. Four days later, at the January 18 final pretrial conference, AUSAappeared again for the US. Judge
Hughes took the bench and immediately “excused” AUSA[(SJX{&)again. This time, AUSAasked for a reason for
her dismissal, which Judge Hughes refused to provide. US Attorney Ryan Patrick was present in the courtroom. He
approached the bench and asked Judge Hughes why he was banishing AUSA from the courtroom. Judge Hughes
eventually stated that he was doing so because of the[{s)N{(s)R case: Judge Hughes disagreed with the factual
statements made in the government’s brief in that case, called the Government’s brie{{s)R{8)] and stated that USA

Patrick {(QJX(S)] Judge Hughes also stated: [{sJK(5)]
(b) (6) At the end of that Friday pretrial conference, Judge

Hughes directed that trial proceed on Tuesday, January 22, the day after the MLK holiday. The record is devoid of any
evidence or allegation of misconduct concerning AUSA[{sJ](8)] handling of the{(s)N() I case.

Mandamus, recusal, and Government appeal: The day after the pretrial hearing (Saturday, January 19), with the
blessing of the Solicitor General’s Office, the Government filed a petition for a writ of mandamus, seeking Judge
Hughes’ recusal from the case and rescission of his order disqualifying AUSAfrom prosecuting the
case. The Government also moved in the district court for Judge Hughes to recuse himself. The Fifth Circuit denied the
mandamus petition without comment, and Judge Hughes denied the recusal motion. The Government then filed a
notice of appeal of Judge Hughes’ denial of the recusal motion, again with the blessing of the SG’s Office.

Trial: Trial proceeded on January 22, without AUSA(NE). The defendant was convicted, and the case is now pending
sentencing. The Government appeal of the recusal matter is still pending.

Judicial conduct: Our US Attorney, our office leadership, and AUSA[{s)]{&)}would like to pursue a judicial conduct
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complaint. Judge Hughes’ conduct in the(JR(JP case was unacceptable, as the Fifth Circuit noted. And in the
(QX@M case, he retaliated against AUSA[BRE)] because of the Government's successful appeal in[(JKER. Judge

Hughes’ conduct was entirely inappropriate, and was not in keeping with the conduct that the Department and the
public expect from a federal judge. We ask for your support and assistance in filing a complaint with the Fifth Circuit
Judicial Council, seeking that body’s action to address Judge Hughes’ conduct.

I'm attaching several items: (1) a link to the Fifth Circuit's opinion in the (K@@ case; (2) the transcript of the pretrial
hearing in the[(KEIM case; (3) our Fifth Circuit petition for mandamus; and (4) our motion for Judge Hughes to

recuse himself.

Thank you very much for your consideration. Please let me know if you need any additional information.

Link to[(JKE)R opinion: http://www.ca5.uscourts.gov/opinions/pub/17/17-20131-CRO.pdf
The ABA Journal wrote about th ®) (6) op|n|on last year:

The ABAJournaI has now picked up this most recent story http: ZZWWW abaj oumal com[news(artmle(recusal mot|on—

federal-judge-kicked-prosecutor-out-of-courtroom-in-retaliation-for-appeal-success
We believe that additional media coverage may occur.

Sincerely,

() (6). (b) (7

(b) (6), (b) (7)(C)
Executive AUSA
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From: PICKOIYI®)] (USATXS)

To: Hardy, Lyn (OPR)

Cc: Patrick, Ryan (USATXS); (USATXS)
Subject: Judicial conduct complaint

Date: Tuesday, January 29, 2019 4:07:50 PM
Attachments: i

"l otisian
RPN (o) RICINIEICR

Hi, Lyn: Thank you again for speaking with me today. As we discussed, here are the facts surrounding our request for
assistance in filing a complaint with the Fifth Circuit Judicial Conduct Commission against US District Judge Lynn
Hughes.

Background: In[(JX(®) , AUSA[(X@EI mistakenly failed to turn over all discovery to the defense.
US District Judge Lynn Hughes excoriated AUSA[BJ]@)]for her mistake, and dismissed the indictment with prejudice. In

doing so, he made a number of offensive and misogynistic comments. Among other comments, Judge Hughes stated:
QIO

BXG) The Government appealed, and the Fifth Circuit reversed Judge Hughes’ dismissal of the indictment in a July
2018 published opinion. The appellate court also directed that the case be reassigned to a different district judge, and

scolded Judge Hughes for his comments, stating that his comments were [(§KG))
(b) (6) OPR conducted a preliminary inquiry into AUSA Q)@ conduct in thd(YRE@N case, and

closed that inquiry upon concluding that AUSA[(J]E)] discovery violation resulted from a mistake.

mm%: AUSA[(QN@)] next appearance before Judge Hughes occurred on (K@) , at a pretrial
conference in[(YX@)] , a health care fraud case. At the outset of that hearing, Judge Hughes took the
bench and immediately “excused” AUSA QB from the courtroom. AUSA[@J) left the courtroom without
comment. Four days later, at the January 18 final pretrial conference, AUSA appeared again for the US. Judge
Hughes took the bench and immediately “excused” AUSA [@@)again. This time, AUSA[@JI@) asked for a reason for
her dismissal, which Judge Hughes refused to provide. US Attorney Ryan Patrick was present in the courtroom. He
approached the bench and asked Judge Hughes why he was banishing AUSA from the courtroom. Judge Hughes
eventually stated that he was doing so because of the (K@@ case: Judge Hughes disagreed with the factual
statements made in the government’s brief in that case, called the Government’s brief and stated that USA

Patrick [(YN@) Judge Hughes also stated: {(KG)
(b) (6) At the end of that Friday pretrial conference, Judge

Hughes directed that trial proceed on Tuesday, January 22, the day after the MLK holiday. The record is devoid of any
evidence or allegation of misconduct concerning AUSA[(QK@)] handling of the (YK case-

Mandamus, recusal, and Government appeal: The day after the pretrial hearing (Saturday, January 19), with the

blessing of the Solicitor General’s Office, the Government filed a petition for a writ of mandamus, seeking Judge
Hughes’ recusal from the (YK case and rescission of his order disqualifying AUSA from prosecuting the
case. The Government also moved in the district court for Judge Hughes to recuse himself. The Fifth Circuit denied the
mandamus petition without comment, and Judge Hughes denied the recusal motion. The Government then filed a
notice of appeal of Judge Hughes’ denial of the recusal motion, again with the blessing of the SG’s Office.

Trial: Trial proceeded on January 22, without AUSA[(OK@). The defendant was convicted, and the case is now pending
sentencing. The Government appeal of the recusal matter is still pending.

Judicial conduct: Our US Attorney, our office leadership, and AUSA[®NEE)] would like to pursue a judicial conduct
complaint. Judge Hughes’ conduct in the [(Y(@I case was unacceptable, as the Fifth Circuit noted. And in the
(OX@EM case, he retaliated against AUSA[(BKE)] because of the Government’s successful appeal in (QKEQN Judse

Hughes’ conduct was entirely inappropriate, and was not in keeping with the conduct that the Department and the
public expect from a federal judge. We ask for your support and assistance in filing a complaint with the Fifth Circuit
Judicial Council, seeking that body’s action to address Judge Hughes’ conduct.

I'm attaching several items: (1) a link to the Fifth Circuit's opinion in the[(YK@B case; (2) the transcript of the pretrial
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hearing in the (Y@M case; (3) our Fifth Circuit petition for mandamus; and (4) our motion for Judge Hughes to
recuse himself.

Thank you very much for your consideration. Please let me know if you need any additional information.

Link to[(KER opinion: http://www.ca5.uscourts.gov/opinions/pub/17/17-20131-CRO.pdf
The ABA Journal wrote about the [(§))] (6) opmlon last year:

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

(b) (6), (b) (7

(b) (6), (b) (7)(C)
Executive AUSA
USAO Houston

(b) (6), (b) (7)(C)
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From: ESI(b) (6), (b) (7)(C)

Sent: Monday, February 18, 2019 3:14 PM

To: Amundson, Corey (OPR); Ragsdale, Jeffrey (OPR); (b) (6) Hardy, Lyn (OPR)
Cc: Patrick, Ryan (USATXS); (USATXS)

Subject: Fwd: Pro-Hughes Rally at 515 Rusk Tuesday

Attachments: Press Release.pdf.DRF; ATTO0001.htm.TXT; Statement of Attorneys.pdf.DRF; ATT00002.htm.TXT

Everyone: Please see below, FYI — a scheduled event for tomorrow, in support of Judge Hughes. ((QKG)]

is a local defense attorney. ((S)N(S)JMM. who forwarded the notice to the media (who then sent it to
our Public Affairs Officer), is the head of our local CJA panel.

The attached materials concern a press event that will be held at 4:00 pm on
Tuesday, February 19, 2019, in front of the federal courthouse at 515 Rusk.

The point of contact is () K(S)]

(713) 665-7070 (Fax)

1
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From: Amundson, Corey (OPR)

Sent: Thursday, February 14, 2019 9:12 AM

To: Hardy, Lyn (OPR)

Cc: Ragsdale, Jeffrey (OPR)

Subject: FW: Judge Hughes -- additional materials

Attachments: sentencing transcript.pdf.TXT; Untitled.TXT; 05 Jul 16 Jones GCO email re Formal Notice of

Recusal -- Hughes investigation.txt. TXT

Here are the attachments referenced in the previous email.

D) (6). (b) () CNIINESI(D) (6), (b) (7)(C)

Sent: Thursday, February 14, 2019 8:42 AM
To: Amundson, Corey (OPR) (b) (6) ; Ragsdale, Jeffrey (OPR)
(b) (6)  Herring, Albert A. (OPR) (ON()
Cc: Patrick, Ryan (USATXS) (RO M) XT(®);

BNYS](b) (6), (b) (7)(C)

Subject: Judge Hughes -- additional materials

(USATXS) [(OEONOIVI(®)

Good morning, everyone: Thank you again for our call yesterday. As discussed, here is the additional information.

(0) (5), (b) (6

Again, we appreciate your assistance and support. Please contact me with any questions or for further information.

Sincerely,

(b) (6). (b) (7)(§

(b) (6), (b) (7)(C)
Executive AUSA
USAOQO Houston

WIORWINI®)

1
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Ragsdale, Jeffrey (OPR)
Thursday, February 14, 2019 9:11 AM

To: Hardy, Lyn (OPR)

Cc: Herring, Albert A. (OPR); Amundson, Corey (OPR)

Subject: FW: Judge Hughes -- additional materials

Attachments: sentencing transcript.pdf.DRF; Untitled. TXT; 05 Jul 16 Jones GCO email re Formal Notice of
Recusal -- Hughes investigation.txt. TXT

Lyn

We had a short telephone conversation with USA Ryan Patrick, (FAUSA), Mitchell Carmen (Appellate Chief)
and [QEQHOIGI®) \csterday to advise them that OPR would be making a referral regarding Judge Hughes. During the
conversation they advised us that they would send us some additional examples of problems they have encountered
with Judge Hughes. | am forwarding their subsequent e-mail which we just received.

Jeff

Duplicate of BN 00643

1
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Duplicate of BN 00643

2
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From: (0) 6). (b) (OIS (b) (6), (b) (7)(C)

Sent: Wednesday, February 13, 2019 9:54 AM
To: Hardy, Lyn (OPR)
Subject: Judge Hughes

Hi, Lyn: This article appeared in yesterday's Houston Chronicle. Thank you again for all your help!

https://www.houstonchronicle.com/news/houston-texas/houston/amp/Houston-federal-judge-bars-female-prosecutor-
from-13610959.php?__twitter_impression=true

1
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From: Gonzalez, Gregory (OPR

To: (b) (6). (b) (7)(C)
Subject: OPR correspondence from U.S. Court of Appeals Re: U.S. District Court Judge Lynn N. Hughes
Date: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 8:40:00 AM

Attachments:  OPR-#442065-v1-201900180-
N _Incoming correspondence from U S Court of Appeals Re U S District Court Judge Lynn N Hughes.PDF

(b) (6), (b) (7)(C]

| am taking over the non-DOJ bar referrals at OPR from Lyn Hardy who recently retired.

OPR received the attached order from the Fifth Circuit with regard to our referral of Judge Hughes.
The court ordered DOJ to notify the Clerk of the Court of the ultimate disposition of () R(S)}
I

I was hoping that you could make the assigned counsel in [(S)K(S)Jll aware of this order and ask
counsel to keep OPR in the loop on any developments.

Thank you,

Greg Gonzalez

Counsel

U.S. Department of Justice

Office of Professional Responsibility
950 Pennsylvania Ave. NW,
Washington, D.C. 20530

(b) (6)

202-514-5050 fax

F22-00034 - 00647



From: (b) (6), (b) (7)(C)

To: Gonzalez, Gregory (OPR
Subject: RE: OPR correspondence from U.S. Court of Appeals Re: U.S. District Court Judge Lynn N. Hughes
Date: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 8:50:19 AM

Hello, Greg: Thank you for forwarding this letter. We will definitely keep you updated on the

progress of our appeal.

Sincerely,

(b) (6). (b) (7)(§

(b) (6), (b) (7)(C)
General Counsel
USAO Houston
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